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Relationship Between Mediation Confidentiality and Attorney Malpractice 
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The Commission1 has received the following new communications relating to 
its study of the relationship between mediation confidentiality and attorney 
malpractice and other misconduct: 
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Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara Gaal 
Chief Deputy Counsel 

                                                
 1. Any California Law Revision Commission document referred to in this memorandum can 
be obtained from the Commission. Recent materials can be downloaded from the Commission’s 
website (www.clrc.ca.gov). Other materials can be obtained by contacting the Commission’s staff, 
through the website or otherwise. 

The Commission welcomes written comments at any time during its study process. Any 
comments received will be a part of the public record and may be considered at a public meeting. 
However, comments that are received less than five business days prior to a Commission 
meeting may be presented without staff analysis. 
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July 20, 2016 

 

 

Barbara S. Gaal, Esq. 

California Law Revision Commission 

4000 Middlefield Road, Suite D2 

Palo Alto, CA  94303 

 

    In re:  Mediation Confidentiality; Memorandum 2016‐38  

 

Dear Ms. Gaal: 

Thank you for your continued interest in and openness to comments on the Commission’s proposed 
changes to California’s mediation confidentiality rules. I appreciate the opportunity to contribute my 
views, and the respectful consideration received from you and the Commission. 
 
The Commission continues to deserve commendation for its decision that California’s Evidence Code 
should be amended to allow plaintiffs in legal malpractice actions to introduce evidence of alleged 
malpractice that occurred in connection with a mediation.  While we believe that such cases will be few, 
they will be critically important to the consumers who bring them.  The Commission’s proposed reforms 
provide a road to justice for those consumers. 
 
At the Commission’s June 1 meeting, the Commission discussed some sort of preliminary merits‐based 
screening of legal malpractice claims arising out of the conduct of lawyers at mediations.  The Staff’s 
further discussion is in Memorandum 2016‐38.   
 
The predicate for the contemplated screening mechanisms is a fear that, without such mechanisms, 
allowing these legal malpractice claims would (1) discourage people from mediating, or reduce the 
effectiveness of mediations, (2) result in excessive or inappropriate legal malpractice cases, or both. 
 
The purpose of this letter is to submit new, actual evidence to the Commission to show that these fears 
are unfounded, and the contemplated merits‐based screenings are unnecessary.  They would be no 
more than stumbling blocks on the road to justice for aggrieved consumers, stumbling blocks of expense 
and delay for consumers who seek adjudications of their claims on the merits.   
 

1. In states which allow claims of legal malpractice arising out of mediations, there is no 
evidence that people engage in less mediation, or that mediation is less effective. 

 
By now, the Commission is well‐familiar with the fact that, in states where the Uniform Mediation Act is 
the law, the privilege of that act gives way in legal malpractice cases.  In UMA states, consumers can  
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prosecute those cases just as they would in California under the Commission’s proposed reforms.  The  
mediation establishment has failed to produce even a peppercorn of evidence that, in UMA states, 
people engage in less mediation, or that mediation in those states is less effective.  There is no empirical 
reason to impose preliminary screenings to preserve the use or effectiveness of mediation. 
 

2. In states which allow claims of legal malpractice arising out of mediations, there is no 
evidence of excessive or inappropriate claims. 

 
The question of whether a lesser standard of mediation confidentiality will lead to excessive or 
inappropriate legal malpractice claims is an empirical question.  So, I decided to look.  I posed the 
question to the leaders of the defense trial lawyer associations of the larger UMA jurisdictions:  
Washington, Illinois, Ohio, New Jersey and the District of Columbia.  I figured, if a UMA‐type standard 
led to excessive or inappropriate claims, the lawyers who have to defend those claims would know.  I 
heard back from leaders in three states, Washington, Illinois and Ohio.  Their responses were 
unanimous.  No problems. 
 
Erin Hammond, the President of the Washington Defense Trial Lawyers, wrote: 
 

I haven’t heard of such claims, though I admit that I am not familiar with all the legal malpractice 
claims that are asserted. 
 

Mark Mifflin, the President of the Illinois Association of Defense Counsel, wrote: 
 

I am not aware of any such claims.  However, I caution that I practice in Springfield where the 
numbers are limited.  Maybe Bill (McVisk, a partner in Johnson & Bell in Chicago, and an officer 
of IADC) can help? 

 
Bill McVisk responded that he was personally not aware of any claims of legal malpractice arising out of 
the conduct of lawyers at mediations in Illinois.  He surveyed his law partners, and then wrote: 
 

So far, the only response I received was about Carlson v. Fish, 205 IL App (1st) 140526, which 
alleged  malpractice due to failing to obtain independent appraisal of the business before 
mediation and permitting the plaintiff to attend the mediation without an attorney present.  
Case was dismissed on statute of limitations grounds. 
 

In Ohio, Joseph Borchelt, co‐chair of the Professional Liability Committee of the Ohio Association of Civil 
Trial Attorneys, wrote: 
 

In practicing professional liability litigation for the last 15 years, I have never encountered a 
claim related to the conduct of lawyers at mediation.  Perhaps David (Oberly, co‐chair  
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of the Professional Liability Committee of OACTA) and John (Garvey, President of OACTA) have 
different experiences. 
 

Mr. Garvey then wrote: 
 

Jeff, my experience is the same as Joe’s, I am not aware of any such. 
 

Mr. Oberly added: 
 

I’m not aware of any claims specifically from lawyer conduct during mediations either. 
 

(Copies of the complete email chains are attached to this letter.  I did not receive any responses from 
defense bar leaders in New Jersey or the District of Columbia.) 
 
The Commission should base its recommendations on evidence, not imaginings.  Any fear of a deluge of 
malpractice claims, which might be used to justify the burdens of merits‐based screening over and 
above the regular processes of demurrers and motions for summary judgment, is imaginary.   
 

3. The fears of the family law mediators are unfounded. 
 
Finally, a note about our friends, the family law mediators. 
 
The family law mediators frequently tout, as a benefit of their process, that it can largely (if not totally) 
eliminate the need and expense of separate lawyers for the divorcing parties.  The family law mediators  
often express, with pride, that they so often mediate divorces without the involvement of lawyers in the 
mediations. 
 
The proposed reform to mediation confidentiality deals only with the ability to bring malpractice claims 
against lawyers. 
 
Since so much of the family law mediators’ work is done without lawyers involved, the ability to sue 
lawyers for malpractice committed in mediation shouldn’t affect them.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EX 7



 
 

Barbara S. Gaal, Esq. 
July 20, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 
Again, I thank the Commission for its consideration of my views.  I look forward to continuing to provide 
information and perspectives which I hope the Commission finds helpful. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jeff Kichaven 
 
JK:abm 
 
Att:  Email chains 
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